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“I really began 
to live again the 

day I returned to 
work.”   

      — Tom Young

“They took care  
of me like I 

 was family.”  
      — Harley Bowers

“They took the 
time to simply  

ask how we  
were doing.”  

      — Jandale Carter
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Introduction

Pinnacol guides injured workers through the complexities of the workers’ compensation system, with all  
its legal requirements, state-mandated documentation and industry-specific terminology. We take time 
to explain their benefits under Colorado law. We facilitate three-way phone calls when an injured worker 
is uneasy about asking a doctor’s office questions on his or her own. Our staff has even been known to 
meet families at the hospital with paperwork in hand, so that benefits and wage-replacement checks 
can begin flowing as soon as possible.   

That’s a personal touch that only Pinnacol, as a Colorado-based company, can provide. 

Pinnacol insures some of Colorado’s highest-risk businesses.

At pinnacol Assurance, we believe injured workers 
deserve support and compassion from their  
insurance carrier, as well as timely medical care  
and financial compensation.

As a result, our employees’ relationships with injured workers 
often become personal and meaningful. And that’s what sets 
us apart.

Pinnacol has the privilege — and great responsibility — of 
helping people through a difficult period of their lives. We come 
into the picture when they’re most vulnerable — injured or ill, 
unable to work and anxious about providing for their families. 

“They took the time to simply ask how we were doing.” — Jandale Carter
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In the “Profiles” section of this report, you’ll hear about three Coloradans whose lives were changed  
by workplace injury and the Pinnacol employees who helped them. We are honored to be part  
of their life stories.

 

We admire Tom, Jandale and Harley for the way they’ve handled adversity. Their courage and  
determination are an inspiration to injured workers and Pinnacol employees alike. To experience  
their stories on video, please visit our 2009 Online Annual Report at www.pinnacol.com.  

Tom Young was a Golden firefighter and father of two small children  
in 1990 when he was rendered quadriplegic while trying to save  
an injured hang glider. tom battled a deep depression and now says,  
“I really began to live again the day I returned to work.”

Jandale Carter became a widow five years ago when husband  
Barry was electrocuted at the Greeley salvage yard where he worked.  
Despite the family’s financial and emotional struggles, two of the three  
Carter children have been able to attend college with scholarships  
from the pinnacol Foundation. 

Harley Bowers was supervising a construction project in Buena Vista  
when a ladder gave out under him, severely breaking his foot.  
throughout surgery and the staph infection that followed, he says,  
pinnacol staff took care of him “like I was family.”  

Introduction, Cont.
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As Ceo of Colorado’s leading workers’ compensation  
insurance company, I receive the most revealing feedback 
when I’m traveling around Colorado, at charitable events or 
out to dinner with my family. Sometimes I’m taken aback by 
how far people go out of their way to share something nice. 
often it’s an injured worker or family who feel compelled to  
let me know how well a pinnacol employee took care of them.

 
In those moments, I’m proud to lead not just any workers’ compensation 
insurer, but Pinnacol Assurance. Our vision is to be the best workers’ 
compensation insurance company in the nation, and that goes well 
beyond writing benefit checks. 

Being the best means delivering top-notch service, keeping rates 
stable and affordable, and genuinely caring about the people our 
business serves.

A Culture of Compassion
In this day and age, “compassionate insurer” sounds like an oxymoron. But that’s what  
injured workers Tom Young, Jandale Carter and Harley Bowers (see “Profiles” section)  
will tell you about Pinnacol. And they are not alone. 

In a recent survey, fully 80 percent of injured-worker respondents were satisfied with  
Pinnacol’s overall handling of their claims. Within that category, injured workers reserved  
their highest marks for “being treated with respect and courtesy.”

The capacity to care, to get involved and to want to make a difference — these are traits  
of the people we hire. We keep that spirit alive through a corporate culture that rewards 
teamwork and service. Operationally, we maintain an unusually high ratio of one nurse  
for every two claims representatives, so we can deliver personal, attentive service to injured 
workers and their families. With manageable caseloads, our nurses can spend more time 
with each worker and proactively troubleshoot problems. 

One thing that surprises injured workers is the frequency of our phone calls — to learn how 
the latest doctor’s appointment went, to find out how that new medication is being tolerated 
or just to ask how they’re getting along. At the same time, we keep our sights set on the day 
an injured worker can return to the job in some capacity. The opportunity to feel productive 
again has been proven to help workers physically, mentally and financially.

Ken Ross 
President and Chief Executive  
Officer of Pinnacol Assurance

President’s Message
 “They took care of me like I was family.” — Harley Bowers
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We thrive on making a difference. So I suppose it’s natural that we look for ways to help  
in the larger community too. Pinnacol employees readily volunteer their time and talent  
in the neighborhoods where they live and work. In 2009, 93 percent of our employees  
spent time volunteering. 

The Pinnacol Foundation makes a big impact, too, by providing college scholarships to  
the children of Colorado workers seriously injured or killed on the job — regardless of  
which carrier handled the parent’s claim. In 2009, the Foundation surpassed the $1 million 
mark in scholarships to help students realize their dreams of college education. 

Improving the Pinnacol Experience
Being the best means you never stop reaching;  
there’s always room for improvement. In 2009, we  
developed the underlying structure for two important  
initiatives aimed at enhancing our stakeholders’  
experience with Pinnacol:

Our Health Risk Management (HRM) Study is  
groundbreaking, and seeks to prove a link between  
wellness programs and lower workers’ compensation 
costs. Enrolled policyholders will participate in wellness 
programs that guide employees in making lifestyle 
choices that help them become healthier, happier and 

more productive. Pinnacol believes HRM will someday be as fundamental to managing risk 
as safety is today. Our goal is to enroll 30,000 Colorado employees in our HRM program 
over the next five years. 

The Clinic Performance Initiative will begin measuring Pinnacol-contracted medical clinics 
in areas crucial to the injured-worker experience. These measurements will help make sure 
that injured workers are being treated at clean, organized clinics by friendly, competent  
professionals who provide good care, schedule appointments in a timely manner and file 
the right paperwork. This information will also help policyholders select a designated  
provider; show agents which clinics run efficient, responsive operations; and give medical 
providers insights into how they can improve their own practices. 

In 2010, we launched these initiatives externally, educating stakeholders and enrolling  
participants. HRM training began in May, and the first complete version of clinic  
performance data will be available in August. 

Also in 2010, we distributed another general dividend and reduced rates. We also  
welcomed four new members to the Pinnacol Board, including a doctor, an insurance  
agent, a management expert and a union official, whose perspectives will nicely round  
out our existing board.

Ross teaching high school students through 
Junior Achievement.
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Through the Eyes of Injured Workers and Their Families
The rest of this report offers an intensely personal glimpse into the lives of three Coloradans 
who were affected by workplace injuries and counted on Pinnacol in the days, months and 
years that followed.

In some cases, we’ve become a permanent part of injured workers’ lives — providing  
lifelong financial and medical benefits, helping send their kids to college through  
the Pinnacol Foundation, and going that extra mile to support and respect them  
as individuals. 

We will continue to strive to be the best workers’ compensation company in the nation.  
What gives us peace is knowing that the people who know Pinnacol best — the Colorado 
employers we serve and the workers with serious injuries or permanent disabilities, as well 
as the surviving family members of workers killed on the job — are those who value us most.

A Partner on the Journey to Recovery
I have a deep respect for the fortitude of these injured workers and, equally so, for the 
individual Pinnacol team members who have journeyed with them on the road to recovery. 
Thanks, all of you, for sharing your stories with us.

Ken Ross 
President and Chief Executive Officer

PRESIDENT’S MESSAGE, CONT.

President’s Message, Cont.
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the year 2009 was another tumultuous one for Colorado businesses doing their 
best to hang on in the midst of a deep recession. now more than ever, businesses 
need a workers’ compensation insurance company they can count on. pinnacol  
Assurance is financially healthy and stable — and determined to remain that way.

 
Pinnacol’s stability is the result of a long-term investment in doing 
the right thing. We strive to be good to our own employees, who, 
in turn, treat our customers well. As responsible stewards of 
policyholder money, we push ourselves to achieve operational 
efficiencies and embrace technology that streamlines processes, 
reduces costs and protects the environment. We believe injured 
workers deserve support and compassion from their insurance 
carrier, as well as financial compensation and medical care.

In 2009, we spent significant amounts of time and energy  
protecting Pinnacol’s assets, reputation and business operations. 

In spite of 2009’s challenges, we managed to have a successful 
year financially. That, in turn, allows Pinnacol to remain a source of stability and reliability in an 
otherwise uncertain business environment.

Financial Stability
Premium Earned: $398.5 million in 2009

Premium Rate Reduction: 10 percent reduction over 2009, saving business owners  
more than $45 million

Investment Portfolio Yield: 4.8 percent in 2009

Dividend Distributions
General Dividends: Approximately $120 million in 2009

Customer Satisfaction and Retention
Overall Service Quality Rating: 8.8 on a 10-point scale, an all-time high

Customer Retention: 91 percent of customers kept their business with Pinnacol in 2009

Year in Review

Mt. Sneffels, Telluride, Colo.

”Because of their kindness and empathy, I knew I could trust them.” —  Jandale Carter
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YEAR IN REVIEW, CONT.

Legislative Activity
Early in the year, the state legislature introduced a bill to raid Pinnacol’s assets in order to 
cover a budget shortfall. That bill was pronounced illegal by Colorado’s Attorney General  
and eventually dropped. A second bill threatened to change Pinnacol’s structure but,  
instead, was modified to create an interim committee to study our operations. As a result,  
we participated in a three-month review of our business practices. 

Senate Bill 273: Pulled. Sponsors dropped this bill after the Colorado Attorney General 
pronounced it illegal and the governor indicated he would not sign it. The bill would have 
deleted language in the Workers’ Compensation Act that says Pinnacol’s assets belong to 
Pinnacol and can’t be taken or borrowed by the state. It then would have required a transfer 
of $500 million from Pinnacol to the state treasury.

Senate Bill 281: Modified and Passed. The original version of this bill, which would have 
altered the company’s current structure and brought Pinnacol back under state control.  
The bill was modified to require a performance audit and to create an interim committee  
to study our company.

Employee Satisfaction
Employee Satisfaction Rating: 8.3 on a 10-point scale, a strong validation  
of our belief that employee satisfaction drives customer satisfaction

“Best Place to Work” Awards: From the Great Place to Work® Institute,  
the Society for Human Resource Management and ColoradoBiz magazine 

Community Involvement
The Pinnacol Foundation: 86 scholarships, totaling $251,250, awarded to children  
of workers seriously injured or killed on the job 

Employee Giving Program: $78,034 raised for the Mile High United Way through  
employee donations and a 100 percent corporate match

Pinnacol in Action: 586 employees, or 93 percent of our staff, volunteered a total  
of 5,442 hours in 2009

Year in Review, Cont.

Pinnacol employees with “Best Place  
to Work” awards and in Pilates class.



Pinnacol Assurance 2009 Annual Report, © 2010

Workplace  
        Injury

8

Since the earliest days of workers’ compensation, 
pinnacol Assurance has been here for Colorado. 

Evolution of Workers’ Comp Insurance
During the Industrial Revolution, as heavy machinery and 
assembly lines became commonplace in factories across 
the nation, work-related injuries began to soar. Civil lawsuits 
against employers took years to settle and employees often 
ended up dependent on welfare or the charity of others. 

So in 1915, the Colorado General Assembly passed  
the Workers’ Compensation Act. At the same time, Pinnacol 

Assurance was created as the assured source through which any Colorado business could 
obtain workers’ comp coverage.

Purpose of Workers’ Comp 
In the simplest terms, workers’ compensation insurance protects employees from financial  
difficulty and protects businesses from lawsuits. 

It creates a pact between employers and their employees: Employers are mandated to cover 
medical care and provide partial wage replacement for injured workers; in exchange for this 
protection, workers’ compensation is the exclusive remedy for workers injured on the job. 

Pinnacol’s Impact on Colorado
Pinnacol’s financial reliability — five consecutive years of rate reductions, general dividend  
distributions and “safety net” role to insure any Colorado business, regardless of its  
size or accident history — make us a stabilizing force in Colorado’s business community.

In fact, Colorado has the eighth-lowest workers’ comp premiums in the United States,  
according to the National Council on Compensation Insurance.

Financial Performance

Heavy machinery at use in 19th-century 
Leadville, Colo. 

“Pinnacol stood by me.” — Harley Bowers
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE, CONT.

Our stability also allows us to remain outwardly focused — on the needs of our customers 
and injured workers — and to deliver service beyond the minimum requirements of the law.  

Maintaining Pinnacol’s health and stability, and treating others as we’d like to be treated 
ourselves, has yielded positive results again in 2009:

Premium Earned: $398.5 million

Investment Portfolio Yield: 4.8 percent

General Dividends: Approximately $120 million

Customer Retention Rate: 91 percent

Financial Performance, Cont.
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For 95 years, pinnacol Assurance has helped Colorado businesses keep  
their workers safe and care for those who are injured on the job. 

We are the only company solely focused on workers’ comp 
and the state of Colorado.

In addition to that one-state, one-product focus, what sets 
Pinnacol apart is our respect and compassion for those we 
serve. We’re in the business of helping people — to run  
profitable businesses, to remain safe and injury free, to regain 
their livelihoods when accidents do happen, and to enjoy the 
dignity that comes from productive work.

Our compassionate approach distinguishes us from our 
competitors and has helped us become the preferred  

workers’ compensation carrier for more than 55,000 Colorado businesses. We cover nearly  
1 million Colorado workers, or 57 percent of the state’s workforce. 

Pinnacol is the assured source of coverage for companies that might not otherwise be in 
business today — the small businesses and startups with no track record, organizations 
with a history of workplace accidents, and companies operating in high-risk industries.  

Our health and stability — particularly during this recession — has allowed us to stand 
strong for those who rely on us around the state of Colorado.

Quick Stats

Policyholders: More than 55,000

Medical Providers: 1,400

Earned Premium: $398.5 million

General Dividends: Approximately $120 million

Rates: 10 percent reduction, saving Colorado businesses  

more than $45 million 

Coverage: Approximately 1 million Colorado workers — 57 percent of the state’s 
workforce — are covered by Pinnacol  

About Us

Injured firefighter Tom Young with his 
Pinnacol team. 

“I really began to live again the day I returned to work.” — Tom Young
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AbOuT uS, CONT.

Pinnacol employees receive ergonomic  
assistance (left) and volunteer time off (right).

About Us, Cont.

Customer Satisfaction
Pinnacol’s customer-satisfaction levels are at an all-time high and well above  
industry norms:

Overall service quality was 8.8 out of 10 points on our 2009 survey.

 A full 91 percent of customers chose to keep their business with Pinnacol in 2009.

Community Involvement
Compassion is woven into the fabric of Pinnacol’s culture. Our employees embrace  
opportunities to give back to the Colorado communities that support us:

The Pinnacol Foundation awards college scholarships to the children of Colorado  
workers injured or killed on the job — regardless of which insurer handled the parent’s claim.  
In 2009, 86 scholarships were awarded, totaling $251,250.

 Pinnacol in Action is an employee-run volunteer program that supports six Colorado  
nonprofits. In 2009, 93 percent of Pinnacol employees spent a total of 5,442 hours  
volunteering in the community.

 The Employee Giving Program allows employees to financially support the Mile High  
United Way. Pinnacol provides a 100 percent match, doubling the impact of each  
employee’s donation. More than $78,034 was raised for local charities in 2009.

Honors and Recognition
Pinnacol was the proud recipient of several local and national awards in 2009:

Community Service Awards:   
Big Brothers Big Sisters of Colorado  
The Points of Light Institute 

 “Best Place to Work” Awards:  
 Great Place to Work® Institute, the Society for Human Resource Management,  
ColoradoBiz magazine 
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2009 Board of Directors
Pinnacol Assurance’s board members closely reflect the demographics of our customers. 
Many are small-business owners; several have worked for the regional offices of large,  
national employers; and one represents Pinnacol’s many rural customers in the farm and 
ranch industry. Board members are appointed by the governor and approved by the  
Colorado Senate. With its collective business acumen and insights into Colorado’s workers’ 
compensation system, our board of directors helps guide Pinnacol toward long-term financial 
health and stability.

Leadership
“They said: ‘Don’t’ worry. We’re gonna take care of you.’” — Harley Bowers

From Top Left, Down:  
David Green 
Platte River Power Authority Inc.

David Stevens 
Irongate Financial Services Inc.  
(Board Vice Chair) 

Bonnie Dean 
Bonnie Dean Associates

Gary Johnson 
Strategic Insurance Consultants Inc.  
(Board Chair) 

 
From Top Right, Down:   
Debra Lovejoy 
Employers Resource of Colorado

Mark Eagleton 
Eagleton Ventures LLC 

Ryan Hettich 
Sundance Capital Inc. 

Robert J. Jolly 
Barbara Jolly & Sons Ranch LLC 

Paul Suss 
Suss Pontiac GMC Inc.

Not Pictured: 
Paul Pettinger
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2009 Executive Team
With a vision of Pinnacol Assurance as the “best workers’ compensation insurance company 
in the nation,” our executive team has set high expectations for themselves and others.  
They are the driving force behind Pinnacol’s innovation and thirst for continual improvement. 
One approach has been to stamp out inefficiencies and push decision-making to the front 
lines, allowing Pinnacol staff to better serve policyholders and injured workers. For the past 
five years, the executive team has led Pinnacol in delivering first-rate service, stable and  
affordable rates, and — due to our financial health — dividend payments to policyholders.

From Left, Seated:  
Dan O’Neil 
Vice President, Claims and General Counsel

Jeff Tetrick 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Rob Norris 
Vice President, Strategic Development  
and Chief Information Officer

Carole Sumption 
Vice President, Human Resources  
and Corporate Services

From Left, Standing:  
Marcia Benshoof 
Vice President and Chief Business Officer, 
left Pinnacol in May 2009

Ken Ross 
President and Chief Executive Officer 

Don Collins 
Vice President, Underwriting and Chief  
Marketing Officer

MANAGEMENT, CONT.

Leadership, Cont.
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In mere seconds, tom Young’s life changed forever.   

At the time of his accident, Tom was only 29, with a wife and two young children — Matt, then 
4, and Michelle, who was just 15 months old. He had recently been promoted to fire district 
manager for the city of Golden.

“I had finally gotten the job I wanted, after working my way up from a volunteer firefighter,” 
Tom says. Besides working full time, he was taking night classes to finish his college  
education.

One early summer evening in 1990, Tom was part of a team that responded to a hang glider 
crash on Lookout Mountain. During the rescue, a gust of wind caught the glider, causing  
it to lift off the ground and head toward the rotors of a landing helicopter. Fearing injury to  
the helicopter crew, Tom tried to hold the glider down. Instead, it carried him 25 feet in the  
air and over a rock outcropping. Tom plummeted, tumbling and fracturing several vertebrae  
in his neck. 

By the time rescue workers came to his aid, he wasn’t breathing and had no pulse. 

Tom spent the next four weeks in the ICU, unable to breathe on his own. Next came a four-month  
stay at Craig Hospital, learning how to live in what’s known as a “sip-n-puff wheelchair”;  
Tom puffs into a straw that controls his wheelchair when he wants to go forward and sips  
to move in reverse.

Despite his progress, Tom suffered a deep depression.  

Injured Worker Profiles

“I really began to live again 
the day I returned to work.”

 — Tom Young
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“I felt sorry for myself for two and a half years,” he explains. “Then I changed my attitude and 
went back to work for the Golden Fire Department.” That move served as his turning point.

“I really began to live again the day I returned to work.” 

Today Tom volunteers full time, producing videos, publications, newsletters and anything else 
the department needs. 

“Pinnacol helped me get beyond my personal struggles and depression, so that I could be 
productive with my life and future,” he says. “In particular, Betty (Hearty, a Pinnacol strategic 
nurse case manager) was phenomenal.  She was truly in it for what was best for Tom Young 
and his family.”

Now, Tom is past his darkest days. When people meet him, they’re impressed with his  
quick wit, charisma and positive attitude. But seriousness creeps into his voice when he  
says his disability would never change one thing — his kids attending college. 

“I made the mistake of not finishing my degree right out of high school,” Tom says.  
“Linda and I hammered college into our kids. It’s a lesson I wanted to pass on.”

From the time they were tykes, Matt and Michelle knew they would attend college. But they 
didn’t know it would once again be Pinnacol — specifically the Pinnacol Foundation — that 
would be there to help. The Youngs found out about the Pinnacol Foundation, which grants 
scholarships to children of Colorado workers injured or killed on the job, from Carmella  
Barbieri, a Pinnacol strategic claims representative. 

“I knew they were on limited finances and looking for ways to help with college expenses,” 
says Carmella. “They didn’t know they were eligible and appreciated my telling them about  
the foundation. They’re a wonderful family, and it made me feel good that we could award 
scholarships to both children.” 

Thanks to Pinnacol, the future is full of promise for the Youngs and their children.

“I was treated the best during some of the darkest days of my life, when we didn’t know if  
I was going to live or not,” says Tom. “When you’re coping with something as catastrophic  
as the injury I experienced, being able to deal with an insurance company that’s nice and  
that treats you like a human being is so important.”
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on Aug. 25, 2005, the unthinkable happened to the Carter family. 

Barry Carter, a salvage yard mechanic in Greeley, was electrocuted while performing routine 
maintenance on a high-voltage machine.

Jandale Carter — Barry’s wife — remembers the pounding on her front door that day.  
Looking out, she saw the salvage yard owner and his wife. “And that’s when I knew  
something was wrong,” Jandale says. Hours later, she had to tell her three teenage  
children that their father was gone.

“That was the hardest thing I ever had to do,” Jandale says. “To see their faces and their  
reactions — it just tore them apart.”

Pinnacol claims specialist Liana Dyson decided to wait a few days before contacting  
Jandale. “She needed time to cope,” Liana says, “everything was coming at her so quickly.”

Three days after the tragedy, Liana initiated the first of many conversations with Jandale  
to explain the benefits available to her family.

“I was so confused and knew immediately that without Barry’s income we would suffer,”  
Jandale says. “Pinnacol changed all that for us. Not only did they walk me through the  
benefits and what would happen next, they took the time to reassure me that we would  
be OK. They even called to simply ask how we were doing. The folks at Pinnacol  
really care.”

Part of Liana’s role at Pinnacol is to train other claims representatives and nurses.  
Employees are encouraged to put faces with names, to meet with injured workers  
and their families, and to take the time necessary to build relationships.

 — Jandale Carter

“They took the time to simply  
ask how we were doing.” 

 — Jandale Carter
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“I tell people to put themselves in that person’s shoes,” Liana says. “Imagine your father, 
mother or sister suffering a work injury or, God forbid, losing a spouse. You wouldn’t want 
them to be treated like a claim number. You’d want someone to take the time to really listen 
and care about them.”

Some say that during life’s lowest points, you find out who your friends are. And others come 
into your life as if they were sent to help.

“After we buried my husband, there were some people we never heard from again. But I did 
keep hearing from Pinnacol — and that meant a lot. Five years later, you’re still here for me 
and my kids,” Jandale says.

In addition to receiving Barry’s benefits, two of Jandale’s children — Sean and Maggie — 
have been recipients of Pinnacol Foundation college scholarships. Next year, Carly,  
the Carters’ youngest, will be starting college and applying for a scholarship of her own.

Jandale explains that most scholarships are out of reach for the children of injured workers, 
who are often stretched thin with helping to support the family or care for the injured parent. 
Kids whose parents were killed on the job bear an even heavier burden, battling depression 
and other forms of emotional upheaval. 

“High school was hard for Maggie, and her grades suffered. And Sean had a point last year 
when he finally just crashed,” Jandale says. “But the Pinnacol Foundation was understanding 
and cared about their problems — they stuck with my kids through the hard times.”

From the time their children were little, Barry and Jandale had always stressed the importance 
of a college education. 

“Not going to college wasn’t really an option for my kids,” Jandale says. “Thanks to  
the Pinnacol Foundation, they are able to pursue their dreams. Their father would be  
so incredibly proud of them.” 

Liana says that watching the progress and recovery of families like the Carters is what  
makes her job worthwhile.

“I cannot believe the strength this woman has shown,” Liana says. “Jandale has taken this 
horrible tragedy and rebuilt her life. To watch her kids graduate from high school and then 
send them off to college … I think it’s amazing. I respect and admire her so much for that.”

Injured Workers’ Profiles, Cont.
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“They took care of me  
like I was family.”

 — Harley bowers

Injured Workers’ Profiles, Cont.

Harley Bowers was pretty skeptical about workers’ compensation insurers  
when he first injured himself on a Buena Vista construction site in 2007. 

“You hear things about workers’ comp, and I was prepared for the worst,” Harley says.  
He even took out a second mortgage on his home before an initial round of surgery to repair 
his severely broken foot. 

“I figured I’d need it to cover extra medical expenses,” Harley says with a grin, “but I never 
had to use it.”

His ordeal began on an icy winter morning, five days before Christmas. As a construction 
supervisor, Harley and his crew had climbed atop a high deck to unload materials. The ladder 
they used had been well-secured. But as they worked, someone borrowed the ladder and 
failed to resecure it. Harley was the first to climb down.

“As soon as I set my foot on the ladder, it was gone,” he says. Harley crashed to the ground, 
his left foot landing on a sharp piece of metal, breaking and separating the bones. 

During surgery, a doctor inserted steel plates and screws to repair his foot, but it never healed 
properly. And that’s when Harley got worried again. He suspected his diabetes was complicating 
the healing process.

“I was thinking, ‘Oh, what’s the insurance company gonna say now?’” Harley says. “But it  
was never an issue. Later, I got a staph infection and the Pinnacol people stood by me 
through that too.”

To Harley’s surprise, it was Pinnacol nurse Betty Claridge who suggested he see a  
different doctor. Harley took that advice and was much happier with the outcome.
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“When it was clear my foot wasn’t healing, Betty took it on just like I was her family,”  
Harley recalls. “She gave me suggestions on what to do and set up all my appointments. 
Most important, she said, ‘Don’t worry. This happens.’”

On the administrative side, Pinnacol claims representative Sherry Mars was Harley’s advocate 
in moving along paperwork and making sure his wage-replacement checks were properly 
scheduled in Pinnacol’s system.

“It was more like they were friends. They cared. They wanted to help,” Harley says.

He offers this advice to others who are injured on the job: “I’d tell them not to worry.  
But I’d also tell them to get their paperwork done so that Pinnacol can help. It’s like  
a marriage: Both sides need to do their part to make it work.”

Harley is now retired, but his outlook on workers’ compensation has come a long way.

“Pinnacol is more than just an insurance company. It’s a company that’s there to take  
care of people when they get hurt.”

Injured Workers’ Profiles, Cont.
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2008 STATISTICS, CONT.

2009 Statistics, Cont.
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Audited Financials

To the Members of the Legislative Audit Committee and the Board of Directors  
of Pinnacol Assurance:

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Pinnacol Assurance (the “Company”) 
as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of revenue, expenses, and 
changes in policyholders’ surplus, and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial 
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in  
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit  
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides  
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations 
and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis listed in the table of contents is not a required  
part of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board. This supplementary information is the  
responsibility of the Company’s management. We have applied certain limited procedures, 
which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement 
and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit such 
information and we do not express an opinion on it.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
May 21, 2010, on our consideration of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting 
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 

Independent Auditors’ Report
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pinnacol Assurance (pinnacol) herein sets forth a narrative overview and analysis 
of its financial activities for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008. 
Financial statements for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007,  
are also provided for comparison.

Overview of the Financial Statements
This overview is an introduction to Pinnacol’s financial statements. Pinnacol’s financial  
statements consist of two components: (1) basic financial statements and (2) notes to  
the basic financial statements.

The balance sheets present information regarding all Pinnacol assets and liabilities,  
with the difference between the two being reported as policyholders’ surplus (net assets).

The statements of revenue, expenses, and changes in policyholders’ surplus (net assets) 
present the financial results of operations for Pinnacol for the three most recent fiscal years. 
This statement presents information showing how the net assets changed during the three 
most recent fiscal years. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the cash flows. Thus, 
revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will result in 
cash flows in future fiscal periods. The statement of cash flows details the cash used and 
provided by the various activities of Pinnacol during the fiscal year. However, this statement 
does not consider unpaid responsibilities, which have been established by contract or other 
underlying events during the fiscal year.

The following analyses present three years of comparative condensed financial data.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope 
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of 
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our 
2009 audit.

May 21, 2010
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Analysis of Financial Position
The following is a comparison of the financial position of Pinnacol at December 31, 2009 to 
2008 (in thousands): 

2009 2008 Change

ASSETS:

  Cash, investments, and accrued investment income   $2,056,903    $2,063,909    $(7,006) 

  Capital assets — net (Home Office)   26,472    25,964    508  

  Uncollected premium   30,857    61,953    (31,096) 

  Other   11,229    13,578    (2,349) 

TOTAL ASSETS   $2,125,461    $2,165,404    $(39,943) 

LIABILITIES:

   Reserves for unpaid losses  
  and loss adjustment expenses   $1,149,138    $1,223,160    $(74,022) 

  Unearned premiums   71,838    86,068    (14,230) 

  Other   63,163    82,872    (19,709) 

TOTAL LIABILITIES   $1,284,139    $1,392,100    $(107,961) 

POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS):

  Invested in capital assets (Home Office)   $26,472    $25,964    $508  

  Restricted   46,169    50,656    (4,487) 

  Unrestricted   768,681    696,684    71,997  

TOTAL POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)   $841,322    $773,304    $68,018  
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Policyholders’ surplus (net assets) has increased  
by approximately $68,018,000 from the prior year.  
See discussion below.

The change in carrying value of Pinnacol’s  
investment portfolio of fixed maturities and equity 
securities in 2009 was as follows (in thousands):

The reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses represents management’s best  
estimate of the ultimate medical and indemnity cost of all losses and loss adjustment  
expenses, which are incurred but unpaid at year-end, net of reinsurance. To assist  
management in estimating the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses,  
Pinnacol retains the assistance of an actuarial consulting firm. At December 31, 2009,  
Pinnacol has accrued approximately $1,149,138,000 for unpaid losses and loss adjustment 
expenses as management’s best estimate, which management believes to be a reasonable 
estimate of future amounts to be paid for claims incurred in 2009 or prior. Pinnacol discounted 
its actuarially determined unpaid balances for certain long-term scheduled payments  
by a factor of 3.5% (for tabular basis) in 2009, resulting in a discount of $151,841,000.

The following is a comparison of the financial position of Pinnacol at December 31, 2008  
to 2007 (in thousands): 

2008 2007 Change

ASSETS:

  Cash, investments, and accrued investment income   $2,063,909    $2,078,789    $(14,880) 

  Capital assets — net (Home Office)   25,964    25,846    118  

  Uncollected premium   61,953    71,926    (9,973) 

  Other   13,578    13,131    447  

TOTAL ASSETS   $2,165,404    $2,189,692    $(24,288) 

... continued on following page

Audited Financials, Cont.

Carrying value — beginning of the year   $1,933,675  

Purchases — at cost   253,087  

Proceeds from sales of investments   (311,024) 

Net realized gains (losses)   (1,848) 

Net accretion of bonds   477  

Change in unrealized gains and losses   100,652  

CARRYING vALUE — END OF YEAR   $1,975,019  
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2008 2007 Change

LIABILITIES:

   Reserves for unpaid losses  
  and loss adjustment expenses   $1,223,160    $1,253,864    $(30,704) 

  Unearned premiums   86,068    95,549    (9,481) 

  Other   82,872    69,641    13,231  

ToTal liabiliTies   $1,392,100    $1,419,054    $(26,954) 

POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS):

  Invested in capital assets (Home Office)   $25,964    $25,846    $118  

  Restricted   50,656    41,252    9,404  

  Unrestricted   696,684    703,540    (6,856) 

TOTAL POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)   $773,304    $770,638    $2,666  

Carrying value — beginning of the year   $1,964,766  

Purchases — at cost   410,269  

Proceeds from sales of investments   (371,859) 

Net realized gains   11,744  

Net accretion of bonds   1,623  

Change in unrealized gains and losses   (82,868) 

CARRYING vALUE — END OF YEAR   $1,933,675  

Policyholders’ surplus (net assets) has increased  
by approximately $2,666,000 from the prior year.  
See discussion below.

The change in carrying value of Pinnacol’s  
investment portfolio of fixed maturities and equity 
securities in 2008 was as follows (in thousands):

The reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses represents management’s best  
estimate of the ultimate medical and indemnity cost of all losses and loss adjustment  
expenses, which are incurred but unpaid at year-end, net of reinsurance. To assist  
management in estimating the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses,  
Pinnacol retains the assistance of an actuarial consulting firm. At December 31, 2008,  
Pinnacol has accrued approximately $1,223,160,000 for unpaid losses and loss adjustment 
expenses as management’s best estimate, which management believes to be a reasonable 
estimate of future amounts to be paid for claims incurred in 2008 or prior. Pinnacol discounted 
its actuarially determined unpaid balances for certain long-term scheduled payments by a 
factor of 3.5% (for tabular basis) in 2008, resulting in a discount of $148,184,000.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Results of Operations
The following is a comparison of Pinnacol’s results of operations for 2009 to 2008  
(in thousands): 

Operating income was considerably lower in 2009 due to the continued drop in premium 
rates and high unemployment rates. This was offset by large unrealized gains on Pinnacol’s 
investment portfolio.

Though earned premium decreased from approximately $521,082,000 of earned premium  
in 2008 to $398,502,000 of earned premium in 2009, Pinnacol maintained its role in the  
market during 2009. Earned premiums decreased by approximately $122,580,000 when 
compared to the prior year, primarily due to rate decreases in 2008 and 2009 for policies 
written thereafter. In addition, high levels of unemployment reduced the number of workers 
covered under Pinnacol’s policies, which also reduced premiums earned.

2009  
ACTUAL

2008  
ACTUAL CHANGE

OPERATING REvENUES:

  Premium earned   $398,502    $521,082    $(122,580) 

  Other income   1,480    396    1,084  

           TOTAL OPERATING REvENUES   399,982    521,478    (121,496) 

OPERATING ExPENSES:

  Losses and loss adjustment expenses   290,066    340,917    (50,851) 

  General and administrative   116,741    124,886    (8,145) 

  Dividends to policyholders   116,841    78,557    38,284  

           TOTAL OPERATING ExPENSES   523,648    544,360    (20,712) 

           OPERATING INCOME   (123,666)   (22,882)   (100,784) 

NONOPERATING REvENUE:

  Net investment income   191,684    25,548    166,136  

            CHANGE IN POLICYHOLDERS’  
SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)   $68,018    $2,666    $65,352  

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses were approximately $290,066,000  
and $340,917,000 for 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The board of directors, at its discretion, determines the amount of general policyholder 
dividends to be declared based on Pinnacol’s overall experience and financial condition. 
Pinnacol issued general policyholder dividends to policyholders in good standing of  
approximately $122,600,000 and $54,362,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Net investment income increased from the prior year by approximately $166,136,000,  
primarily due to unrealized gains on Pinnacol’s investment portfolio. Net realized losses  
on the sale of investments were approximately $1,848,000 in 2009, whereas 2008 had net 
realized gains of $11,744,000.

The following is a comparison of Pinnacol’s results of operations for 2008 to 2007  
(in thousands):

2008  
ACTUAL

2007  
ACTUAL CHANGE

OPERATING REvENUES:

  Premium earned   $521,082    $567,284    $(46,202) 

  Other income   396    990    (594) 

           TOTAL OPERATING REvENUES   521,478    568,274    (46,796) 

OPERATING ExPENSES:

  Losses and loss adjustment expenses   340,917    386,390    (45,473) 

  General and administrative   124,886    111,884    13,002  

  Dividends to policyholders   78,557    68,503    10,054  

           TOTAL OPERATING ExPENSES   544,360    566,777    (22,417) 

           OPERATING INCOME   (22,882)   1,497    (24,379) 

NONOPERATING REvENUE:

  Net investment income   25,548    144,263    (118,715) 

            CHANGE IN POLICYHOLDERS’  
SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)   $2,666    $145,760    $(143,094) 

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Operating income remained strong in 2008; however, this was offset by large unrealized 
losses on Pinnacol’s equity securities.

Pinnacol’s book of business decreased from approximately $567,284,000 of earned  
premium in 2007 to $521,082,000 of earned premium in 2008. Pinnacol maintained its role 
in the market during 2008. Earned premiums decreased by approximately $46,202,000 
when compared to the prior year, primarily due to rate decreases in 2006, 2007 and 2008  
for policies written thereafter.

Incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses were approximately $340,917,000  
and $386,390,000 for 2008 and 2007, respectively.

The board of directors, at its discretion, determines the amount of general policyholder  
dividends to be declared, based on Pinnacol’s overall experience and financial condition. 
2005 was the first time Pinnacol paid a general dividend in 23 years. Pinnacol declared 
general policyholder dividends to policyholders in good standing of approximately 
$54,362,000 and $60,641,000 in 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Net investment income decreased from the prior year by approximately $118,715,000,  
primarily due to unrealized losses in Pinnacol’s equity securities. Realized gains on the  
sale of investments were approximately $11,744,000 in 2008 and $9,396,000 in 2007.

Economic Factors
The following important economic factors should be considered when evaluating the  
financial position and operating results of Pinnacol.

Loss and loss adjustment expenses and the corresponding reserves are based on estimates 
that are subject to inherent variability caused by the nature of the insurance process.  
The potentially long period of time between the occurrence of an insured event and the final 
settlement of a claim and the possible effects of changes in the legal, social, and economic 
environments contribute to this variability. In response to this uncertainty, Pinnacol continually 
reviews these estimates, obtains independent actuarial studies, and adjusts the estimates 
as necessary as experience develops or new information becomes known. Such adjustments 
are made in current operations when such determination is made.

Pinnacol issued general policyholder dividends of $122,600,000 and $54,362,000 in 2009 
and 2008, respectively, to its policyholders in good standing. This is included in dividends 
to policyholders on the statement of revenue, expenses and changes in policyholders’  
surplus (net assets) and reduces net income for the years ending December 31, 2009  
and 2008. Pinnacol has paid approximately $349 million in general policyholder dividends 
since 2005.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Effective April 7, 2010, the board of directors declared a general dividend of approximately 
$47,500,000 to its policyholders with policies in good standing. This general dividend was 
paid in May 2010.

The investment portfolio is carried at fair value. The fair value of investments is subject to 
volatility due to market conditions, such as market interest rates. An increase in market  
interest rates will cause a reduction in the fair value of debt securities already held and 
impact Pinnacol’s financial position by creating unrealized losses. Conversely, a decrease in 
market interest rates will cause an increase in the fair value of debt securities already held 
and impact Pinnacol’s financial position by creating unrealized gains. Pinnacol adheres to 
an investment policy and applicable Colorado statutes to maintain a high-quality portfolio.

Pinnacol commenced the discussion of enterprise risk management and what it means to 
Pinnacol today and into the future at the board and leadership level. The desired outcome of 
this discussion was twofold. First, a better understanding of risk and the risks that Pinnacol 
faces at all levels of the organization. Second, a quantification of these risks based upon 
perceived frequency and severity to assist in the definitions of the appropriate surplus levels 
to be targeted by Pinnacol for future business plans. The results of this effort indicated that 
for existing risks, including inflation, market, catastrophic, or economic, the appropriate 
level of surplus for Pinnacol’s risk profile is somewhat less than the surplus recorded at  
year-end 2009. Based upon this finding, Pinnacol has implemented a series of rate  
decreases and policyholder dividends to help bring surplus into the levels indicated by the 
ERM analysis. Each year the board and leadership team are committed to reviewing and 
updating this process to ensure that the level of surplus is appropriate for the risks faced.

Pinnacol’s corporate vision is “To be the best workers’ compensation insurance company  
in the nation.” This vision statement was chosen as the critical motivation that will propel 
Pinnacol’s employees to the achievement of the next level of superior results in the areas  
of customer service, agent partnerships, brand and employee culture.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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(in thousands)

See notes to basic financial statements.

PINNACOL ASSURANCE BALANCE SHEETS DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

2009 2008

ASSETS

INvESTMENTS (NOTE 3):

   Fixed maturities — at fair value  
(amortized cost: 2009 — $1,615,972; 2008 — $1,694,162)   $1,706,783    $1,744,613  

   Equity securities — at fair value  
(cost: 2009 — $273,750; 2008 — $254,973)   268,236    189,062  

  Short-term investments   14,997    17,901  

           TOTAL INvESTMENTS   1,990,016    1,951,576  

CASH AND CASH EQUIvALENTS   48,559    93,773  

CAPITAL ASSETS — Net of accumulated depreciation (Note 9)   26,472    25,964  

UNCOLLECTED PREMIUMS RECEIvABLE — Net of allowance  
for uncollectible balances of $5,021 for 2009 and $5,635 for 2008   30,857    61,953  

POLICY ACQUISITION COSTS   7,339    10,393  

ACCRUED INvESTMENT INCOME   18,328    18,560  

PREPAID ASSETS   3,890    3,185  

           TOTAL   $2,125,461    $2,165,404  

LIABILITIES AND POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)

UNPAID LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT ExPENSES:

  Reserve for unpaid losses (Note 2)   $954,394    $1,006,494  

  Reserve for unpaid loss adjustment expenses (Note 2)   194,744    216,666  

           TOTAL UNPAID LOSSES AND LOSS ADJUSTMENT ExPENSES   1,149,138    1,223,160  

OTHER LIABILITIES   34,662    43,899  

UNEARNED PREMIUMS   71,838    86,068  

DIvIDENDS PAYABLE TO POLICYHOLDERS   20,276    29,957  

CREDIT BALANCES DUE POLICYHOLDERS   8,225    9,016  

           TOTAL LIABILITIES   1,284,139    1,392,100  

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTES 2, 5, 8, AND 10)

POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS):

  Invested in capital assets   26,472    25,964  

  Restricted   46,169    50,656  

  Unrestricted   768,681    696,684  

           TOTAL POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)   841,322    773,304  

TOTAL   $2,125,461    $2,165,404  

Audited Financials, Cont.
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2009 2008

OPERATING REvENUES:

  Premium income   $398,502    $521,082  

  Other income   1,480    396  

           TOTAL OPERATING REvENUES   399,982    521,478  

OPERATING ExPENSES:

  Losses and loss adjustment expenses (Note 2)   290,066    340,917  

  General and administrative   116,741    124,886  

  Dividends to policyholders   116,841    78,557  

           TOTAL OPERATING ExPENSES   523,648    544,360  

OPERATING (LOSS)   (123,666)   (22,882) 

NONOPERATING REvENUES:

  Net investment income   191,684    25,548  

CHANGE IN POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)   68,018    2,666  

POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS) — BEGINNING OF YEAR   773,304    770,638  

POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS (NET ASSETS) — END OF YEAR   $841,322    $773,304  

(in thousands)

STATEMENTS OF REvENUE, ExPENSES,  
AND CHANGES IN POLICYHOLDERS’  
SURPLUS (NET ASSETS)

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

See notes to basic financial statements.

Audited Financials, Cont.



34

Pinnacol Assurance 2009 Annual Report, © 2010

34

(in thousands)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

See notes to basic financial statements.

Audited Financials, Cont.

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008

2009 2008

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIvITIES:

  Premiums collected — net of reinsurance   $412,500    $521,215  

  Other income collected   4,970    990  

   Losses and loss adjustment expenses paid —  
  net of reinsurance and deductibles   (364,088)   (371,621) 

  General and administrative expenses paid   (121,390)   (126,747) 

  Dividends paid to policyholders   (126,523)   (61,943) 

           NET CASH (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIvITIES   (194,531)   (38,106) 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING 

  ACTIVITIES — Purchase of capital assets   (3,805)   (3,005) 

CASH FLOWS FROM INvESTING ACTIvITIES:

  Purchases of investments   (343,018)   (428,029) 

  Proceeds from sale or redemption of investments   404,017    371,859  

  Investment income collected   93,519    94,610  

  Other net investing activities   (1,396)   (255) 

           NET CASH PROvIDED BY INvESTING ACTIvITIES   153,122    38,185  

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIvALENTS   (45,214)   (2,926) 

CASH AND CASH EQUIvALENTS — BEGINNING OF YEAR   93,773    96,699  

CASH AND CASH EQUIvALENTS — END OF YEAR   $48,559    $93,773  

RECONCILIATION OF NET INCOME TO NET CASH  
FROM OPERATING ACTIvITIES:

  Operating loss   $(123,666) (22,882)

  Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:

    Depreciation   3,297    2,886  

    Other changes in assets and liabilities:

      Increase (decrease) in unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses   (74,022)   (30,704) 

      Increase (decrease) in unearned premiums   (14,230)   (9,481) 

      Increase (decrease) in other operating liabilities (18,917)   12,374  

      (Increase) decrease in other operating assets 33,007   9,701  

NET CASH (USED IN) PROvIDED BY OPERATING ACTIvITIES   $(194,531)   $(38,106) 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW  INFORMATION —  
Net increase (decrease) in the fair value   $100,652    $(82,868) 
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 1. Nature of Operations and Significant Accounting Policies
 (a)  Organization — Pinnacol Assurance (Pinnacol or the Company) was established under 

provisions of the Workers’ Compensation Act of Colorado (Title 8, Article 45 of the  
Colorado Revised Statutes (C.R.S.), as amended), as a political subdivision of the  
state of Colorado, to operate as a domestic mutual insurance company for the benefit  
of injured employees and dependents of deceased employees. Pinnacol provides  
insurance to employers operating within the state of Colorado (the State) not otherwise 
insured through private carriers or self-insurance. 
 
Pinnacol is controlled by a nine-member board of directors, which is appointed by the 
governor, with the consent of the Senate. In accordance with the applicable statutes  
of the state, the administration of Pinnacol is under the direction of a chief executive  
officer, appointed by the board of directors. Pinnacol is not an agency of the State and 
the State retains no liability on behalf of Pinnacol, and no state monies are used for  
Pinnacol operations. 
 
In 2009 and 2008, Pinnacol issued approximately $122,600,000 and $54,362,000,  
respectively, in general policyholder dividends to its policyholders in good standing.  
The board of directors, at its discretion, determines the amount of policyholder dividends 
to be declared, if any, based on Pinnacol’s overall experience, financial condition, and 
risk profile.

  
 (b)  Basis of Presentation — Pinnacol has no component units using the criteria as set  

forth in accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP). Pinnacol is a political subdivision of the state and is accounted for as an  
enterprise fund (a business-type activity). All applicable Governmental Accounting  
Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements, as well as all Financial Accounting Standards 
Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations that do not conflict with or contradict GASB 
pronouncements in accordance with GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary 
Fund Accounting, have been implemented by Pinnacol. 
 
The accompanying basic financial statements of Pinnacol have been prepared using the 
flow of economic resources measurement focus and the accrual method of accounting, 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP), which differ from statutory accounting practices prescribed or permitted 
by the Division of Insurance of the Department of Regulatory Agencies of the State of 
Colorado (the Division). 

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Audited Financials, Cont.

DECEMBER 31, 2009 AND 2008



36

Pinnacol Assurance 2009 Annual Report, © 2010

36

 
The effects of the variances between GAAP and the statutory financial statements at  
December 31, 2009 and 2008, and for the years then ended have been determined 
and are presented on the following page (in thousands):

              
 (c)  Use of Estimates — The preparation of basic financial statements in accordance with 

GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at  
the date of the basic financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and  
expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates include the reserves for 
unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses, association dividends, the earned but 
unbilled premium receivable balance included in uncollected premiums, as well as the 
allowance for uncollectible premiums, among others. Reserve for unpaid losses and loss 
adjustment expenses represent estimates of the ultimate unpaid cost, net of reinsurance, 
of all losses incurred, including losses incurred but not reported. This liability is an 
estimate and as such the ultimate actual liability may vary from the recorded amounts. 
These liabilities are reviewed periodically and adjustments to the reserve are included 
in operations in the period such determination is made. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates and such differences could be significant.

2009 2008

GAAP policyholders’ surplus (net assets)   $841,322    $773,304  

Nonadmitted assets   (10,645)   (13,246) 

Policy acquisition costs   (7,339)   (10,393) 

Net unrealized gains on bonds   (90,811)   (51,664) 

STATUTORY POLICYHOLDERS’ SURPLUS   $732,527    $698,001  

2009 2008

GAAP changes in policyholders’ surplus (net assets)   $68,018    $2,666  

Change in fair value of investments   (100,652)   82,868  

Policy acquisition costs   3,054    815  

Other-than-temporary impairments recognized   (1,006)   (68,272) 

Realized gain on sale of impaired securities   7,627    -       

Change in provision for reinsurance   -         (330) 

STATUTORY NET (LOSS) INCOME   $(22,959)   $17,747  

NOTES, CONT.
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 (d)  Policyholders’ Surplus (Net Assets) — Net assets are classified as follows:  
Invested in Capital Assets — This represents the total investment in capital assets  
related to the Home Office, net of accumulated depreciation. There is no outstanding 
debt related to these capital assets. 
 
Restricted Net Assets — Restricted net assets include amounts that are held as  
collateral for reinsurance agreements. 
 
Unrestricted Net Assets — Unrestricted net assets represent resources from the  
continuing operations of Pinnacol that are not invested in capital assets or restricted  
as to use by an external third party.

 
 (e)  Classification of Revenues and Expenses — Pinnacol has classified revenues and 

expenses as either operating or nonoperating according to the following criteria:  
Operating Revenues and Expenses — Revenues and expenses that result from  
providing workers’ compensation coverages, dividends, claims administration,  
and loss control and related services for policyholders. 
 
Nonoperating Revenues — Revenues that are not included as operating revenues. 
Nonoperating revenues include net investment income.

 
 (f)  Investments — Pinnacol’s investments must comply with Title 10, Article 3, Part 2 of the 

C.R.S., as amended, which applies to domestic insurance companies. Investments are 
recorded on trade date. The investment portfolio is carried at estimated fair value. 
 
Amortization of bond premium or discount is calculated using the effective interest 
method, taking into consideration specified interest and principal provisions over the  
life of the bond. 
 
Prepayment assumptions for purposes of recognition of income and valuing of loan-backed 
bonds and structured securities were obtained from external broker-dealer survey values 
or internal estimates. These assumptions are consistent with the current interest rate 
and economic environment. The prospective method is used to value mortgage-backed 
securities. Prepayment assumptions for single-class and multiclass mortgage-backed/
asset-backed securities were obtained from Yield Book and Bloomberg. 
 
Realized gains and losses on sales of investments and changes in unrealized gains and 
losses on investments are reported in net investment income as nonoperating revenues 
and are computed on the specific-identification basis.

 
 (g)  Cash and Cash Equivalents — For purposes of cash flow disclosure, cash and cash 

equivalents are defined as cash and investments that have original maturities of three 
months or less from date of purchase. As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, cash and 
cash equivalents were approximately $48,559,000 and $93,773,000, respectively.  
Pinnacol has recorded cash disbursements that have been issued, but not presented  
for payment, as a reduction of cash and cash equivalents. 

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Bank balances up to $250,000 are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. 
Remaining balances exceeding $250,000 fall under the provisions of the Public Deposit 
Protection Act.

 
 (h)  Short Term Investments — Short term investments are securities with original maturities 

between three months and one year from the date of purchase. Short-term investments  
are carried at amortized cost, which approximates fair value, in the balance sheets  
in the amounts of approximately $14,997,000 and $17,901,000 for the years ended  
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

 
 (i)  Capital Assets — Capital assets include real estate, furniture, and equipment. Real estate 

includes the land, the building on the land, and capitalized building improvements used 
in conducting the Company’s business. Land is carried at cost. Building and capitalized 
building improvements are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. The costs of 
the building and capitalized improvements are depreciated over an estimated useful life 
of 30 years, using the straight-line method. 
 
Office furniture and equipment and art are recorded at cost and depreciated on  
a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of five years. 
 
Electronic data processing equipment and software are recorded at cost and  
depreciated on a straight-line basis over an estimated useful life of three years. 
 
Refer to Note 9 for a summary of capital asset activity for the years ended  
December 31, 2009 and 2008.

 
 (j)  Uncollected Premium Receivable — Uncollected premium receivable is reported net 

of allowances for uncollectible balances. Pinnacol independently estimates the ultimate 
realizable amounts of premiums receivable and establishes an allowance for uncollectible 
premiums for the difference between the gross receivable amount and the estimate of 
the amount to be ultimately realized. 
 
During 2009 and 2008, Pinnacol recorded provisions of approximately $1,252,000 and 
$2,122,000, respectively, for premiums receivable due to the unlikelihood of ultimate  
collection thereof. These amounts are reflected as general and administrative expenses 
in the accompanying basic financial statements. 
 
A significant portion of Pinnacol’s premiums receivable balances at December 31, 2009 
and 2008, were from companies operating in the construction and services industries in 
Colorado. The construction industry represents 33% and 39% of premiums written as of 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. The services industry represents 41% and 
23% of premiums written as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, with all other 
individual industries constituting the remainder of premiums receivable balances.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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 (k)  Earned but Unbilled Premiums — Earned but unbilled premiums represent audit  

premiums, which are amounts due from policyholders after the respective policy period 
has expired based on audits performed by Pinnacol. Such amounts are estimated  
by Pinnacol based upon internal statistically supported aggregate calculations using  
historical unearned premium data and per-policy calculations. Based on this analysis, 
2009 estimated unbilled audit premium receivable was brought down to zero. This drop 
was due to the downturn in the economy and increased unemployment during 2009, 
which resulted in little or no additional premium due. In 2008 estimated unbilled audit 
premium receivable was approximately $14,850,000, and was included as uncollected 
premiums receivable within the balance sheets. 

 
 (l)  Credit Balances Due Policyholders — Credit balances due policyholders represent 

excess premiums or are amounts due to policyholders. Generally, credit balances due 
policyholders are applied to future premium obligations of policyholders. For 2009 and 
2008, such amounts are approximately $8,225,000 and $9,016,000, respectively.

 
 (m)  Policy Acquisition Costs — Commissions and other costs that vary with and are  

directly related to the production of new and renewal business have been deferred.  
The period of amortization is the effective period of the related insurance policy.

 
 (n)  Reserve for Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses — The reserve for 

unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses represents management’s best estimate 
of ultimate net cost of all reported and unreported losses incurred through December 
31. Management estimates the reserve for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses 
with the help of an independent third party actuary. The estimate is based on individual 
case basis valuations and statistical analyses. Those estimates are subject to the effects 
of trends in loss severity and frequency. Although considerable variability is inherent in 
such estimates, management believes the reserves for unpaid losses and loss adjustment 
expenses are adequate. These estimates are continually reviewed and adjusted, as  
necessary, as experience develops or new information becomes known. Such adjustments 
are included in losses and loss adjustment expenses within the statement of revenue, 
expenses, and changes in policyholders’ surplus (net assets) in the period such information 
becomes known. 
 
Pinnacol discounts certain unpaid losses on a tabular basis using a discount rate of 3.5% 
in both 2009 and 2008. The discount rate used to calculate present value is based on  
an industry-standard rate.

 
 (o)  Revenue Recognition — Premium revenue is recognized pro rata over the terms  

of the related insurance policies and reinsurance contracts.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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(p)  Unearned Premiums — Unearned premiums represent amounts either collected  
or billed and due from policyholders at December 31, but unearned at that date.  
Unearned premiums are computed on a pro rata basis over the 12-month term  
of the policies.

 
 (q)  Subrogation — Subrogation claims (claims against third parties) are recognized  

as a reduction of losses incurred upon collection.

 
 (r)  Reinsurance — Ceded reinsurance transactions are accounted for based on estimates 

of their ultimate cost. Losses, loss adjustment expenses, and the reserves for loss  
adjustment expenses are reported gross of reinsured amounts. Reinsurance premiums 
are reflected as a reduction of premiums earned (see Note 5).

 
 (s)  General Policyholder Dividends — The board of directors, at its discretion, determines 

the amount of general policyholder dividends to be declared based on Pinnacol’s overall 
experience and financial condition. Pinnacol has issued general policyholder dividends 
to its policyholders in good standing of approximately $122,600,000 and $54,362,000 in 
May 2009 and 2008, respectively. This is included in dividends to policyholders on the 
statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in policyholders’ surplus (net assets).

 
 (t)  Association Dividend Program — Pinnacol has an association dividend program 

where policyholders who are members of the program are entitled to a dividend based 
on established criteria. In 2009 Pinnacol reduced the estimate of the future liability for 
association dividends by $10,000,000, resulting in a credit of approximately $5,759,000 
in incurred dividend expense. In 2008 Pinnacol incurred approximately $24,195,000 of 
expense related to the association dividend program. These dividends are not declared 
from surplus nor are they recorded as a direct reduction to surplus. The dividends are 
settled via premium credits and are recorded as dividends to policyholders on the  
statement of revenue, expenses, and changes in policyholders’ surplus (net assets) as 
an operating expense.

 
 (u)  Taxes — Pinnacol is not subject to federal or state income taxes, under a specific  

exemption granted under Section 501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code. As a political 
subdivision of the state, Pinnacol is not subject to property tax or sales and use taxes. 
Additionally, Pinnacol is not subject to a premium tax, pursuant to Section 8 45 117(3), 
C.R.S. Pinnacol is, however, subject to a surcharge on premiums received, based on  
a rate established annually (approximately 3.618% and 3.818% in 2009 and 2008,  
respectively), pursuant to Section 8 44 112(1)(a), C.R.S. Such amounts are included  
in general and administrative expenses.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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 (v)  Employee Benefits 

Defined Benefit Pension Plan Through the State of Colorado 
 
Plan Description — All Pinnacol employees participate in a defined benefit  
pension plan. The plan’s purpose is to provide income to members and their families  
at retirement or in case of death or disability. The plan is a cost-sharing multiple- 
employer plan administered by the Public Employees’ Retirement Association (PERA). 
PERA was established by state statute in 1931. Responsibility for the organization and 
administration of the plan is placed with the Board of Trustees of PERA. Changes to the 
plan require an actuarial assessment and legislation by the General Assembly. The state 
plan and other divisions’ plans are included in PERA’s financial statements, which may 
be obtained by writing PERA at P.O. Box 5800, Denver, CO 80217; by calling PERA at 
1-800-759-PERA (7372); or by visiting www.copera.org. 
 
Defined benefit plan members vest after five years of service and are eligible for full 
retirement based on their original hire date as follows:

•  Hired before July 1, 2005 — age 50 with 30 years of service, age 60 with 20 years  
of service, or age 65 with five years of service. 

•  Hired between July 1, 2005, and December 31, 2006 — any age with 35 years of 
service, age 55 with 30 years of service, age 60 with 20 years of service, or age 65 
with five years of service.

•  Hired on or after January 1, 2007 — any age with 35 years of service, age 55 with 30 
years of service, age 60 with 25 years of service, or age 65 with five years of service.

   Members are also eligible for retirement benefits without a reduction for early retirement 
based on their original hire date as follows: 

•  Hired before January 1, 2007 — age 55 with a minimum of five years of service 
credit and age plus years of service equals 80 or more. 

•  Hired on or after January 1, 2007 — age 55 with a minimum of five years of service 
credit and age plus years of service equals 85 or more. 

   Members automatically receive the higher of the defined retirement benefit or money 
purchase benefit at retirement. Defined benefits are calculated as 2.5 percent times 
the number of years of service times the highest average salary. For retirements before 
January 1, 2009, HAS is calculated as one-twelfth of the average of the highest salaries 
on which contributions were paid, associated with three periods of 12 consecutive 
months of service credit and limited to a 15 percent increase between periods.  
For retirements after January 1, 2009, or persons hired on or after January 1, 2007,  
more restrictive limits are placed on salary increases between periods used in  
calculating HAS.
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   Retiree benefits are increased annually based on their original hire date as follows:

•  Hired before July 1, 2005 — 3.5 percent, compounded annually.

•  Hired between July 1, 2005, and December 31, 2006 — the lesser of 3 percent  
or the actual increase in the national consumer price index.

•  Hired on or after January 1, 2007 — the lesser of 3 percent or the actual increase  
in the national consumer price index, limited to a 10 percent reduction in a  
reserve established for cost of living increases related strictly to those hired  
on or after January 1, 2007. (The reserve is funded by one percentage point  
of salaries contributed by employers for employees hired on or after January 1, 2007.)

   Members who are disabled and who have five or more years of service credit, six 
months of which has been earned since the most recent period of membership, may  
receive retirement benefits if determined to be permanently disabled. If a member dies 
before retirement, his or her eligible children under the age of 18 (23 if a full-time student) 
or spouse may be entitled to a single payment or monthly benefit payments. If there 
is no eligible child or spouse, then financially dependent parents, beneficiaries, or the 
member’s estate, may be entitled to a survivor’s benefit.

   Funding Policy — The contribution requirements of plan members and their employers 
are established, and may be amended, by the General Assembly. Salary subject  
to PERA contribution is gross earnings less any reduction in pay to offset employer  
contributions to the state-sponsored IRC 125 plan established under Section 125  
of the Internal Revenue Code.

   All employees contribute 8.0 percent of their salaries, as defined in CRS 24-51-101(42),  
to an individual account in the plan. From January 1, 2008, to December 31, 2008,  
Pinnacol contributed 12.05 percent of the employee’s salary. From January 1, 2009, 
through December 31, 2009, Pinnacol contributed 12.95 percent. Throughout 2009,  
1.02 percent of the employee’s total salary was allocated to the Health Care Trust Fund.

   Per Colorado Revised Statutes, an amortization period of 30 years is deemed actuarially 
sound. At December 31, 2008, the division of PERA in which Pinnacol participates  
was underfunded with an infinite amortization period, which means that the unfunded 
actuarially accrued liability would never be fully funded at the current contribution rate. 

   In the 2004 legislative session, the General Assembly authorized an Amortization  
Equalization Disbursement (AED) to address a pension-funding shortfall. The AED  
required PERA employers to pay an additional 0.5 percent of salary beginning January 1, 
2006 and another 0.5 percent of salary in 2007, and requires subsequent year increases 
of 0.4 percent of salary until the additional payment reaches 3.0 percent in 2012. 

Audited Financials, Cont.
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   In the 2006 legislative session, the General Assembly authorized a Supplemental  
Amortization Equalization Disbursement (SAED) that requires PERA employers to pay 
an additional one-half percentage point of total salaries paid beginning January 1, 2008. 
The SAED is scheduled to increase by one-half percentage point through 2013, resulting 
in a cumulative increase of three percentage points. For state employers, each year’s 
one-half-percentage-point increase in the SAED will be deducted from the amount of 
changes to state employees’ salaries, and used by the employer to pay the SAED.  
Both the AED and SAED will terminate when funding levels reach 100 percent. 

   Historically, members have been allowed to purchase service credit at reduced rates. 
However, legislation passed in the 2006 session required that future agreements to  
purchase service credit be sufficient to fund the related actuarial liability.

   Pinnacol’s contributions to PERA and/or the state defined contribution plan for the years 
ending December 31, 2009 and 2008, were $5,259,000 and $4,746,000, respectively. 
These contributions met the contribution requirement for each year.

   voluntary Tax-deferred Retirement Plans 
PERA offers a voluntary 401(k) plan entirely separate from the defined benefit pension 
plan. Pinnacol offers a 457 deferred compensation plan. Pinnacol matches employees’ 
elective contributions into the PERA 401(k) plan at 50% up to the first 6% of employees’ 
elected deferrals. The matching contribution is immediately vested and available to the 
employees. During the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, Pinnacol contributed 
approximately $907,000 and $780,000, respectively, in matching contributions to the 
401(k) plan.

   Postretirement Health Care and Life Insurance Benefits 
Health Care Program — The PERA Health Care Program began covering benefit  
recipients and qualified dependents on July 1, 1986. This benefit was developed after 
legislation in 1985 established the program and the Health Care Fund; the program 
was converted to a trust fund in 1999. The plan is a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
plan under which PERA subsidizes a portion of the monthly premium for health care 
coverage. The benefits and employer contributions are established in statute and may 
be amended by the General Assembly. PERA includes the Health Care Trust Fund in 
its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, which may be obtained by writing PERA 
at P.O. Box 5800, Denver, CO 80217; by calling PERA at 1-800-759-PERA (7372); or by 
visiting www.copera.org.

   After the PERA subsidy, the benefit recipient pays the balance of the premium through 
an automatic deduction from the monthly retirement benefit. Monthly premium costs  
for participants depend on the health care plan selected, the PERA subsidy amount, 
Medicare eligibility, and the number of persons covered. Effective July 1, 2000, the  
maximum monthly subsidy is $230 per month for benefit recipients who are under  
65 years of age and who are not entitled to Medicare, and $115 per month for benefit  
recipients who are 65 years of age or older or who are under 65 years of age and  
entitled to Medicare. The maximum subsidy is based on the recipient having 20 years  
of service credit, and is subject to reduction of 5% for each year less than 20 years.
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   Employees are not required to contribute to the Health Care Trust Fund, which is  
maintained by employer’s contributions as discussed above. Beginning July 1, 2004, 
employers are required to contribute 1.02% of gross covered wages to the Health Care 
Trust Fund. Pinnacol contributed approximately $414,000 and $402,000 as required by 
statute in the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. In each year the 
amount contributed was 100% of the required contribution.

   The Health Care Trust Fund offers two general types of plans: fully insured plans  
offered through health care organizations and self-insured plans administered for  
PERA by third-party vendors. As of December 31, 2008, there were 45,888 enrolled  
participants, including spouses and dependents, from all contributors to the plan.  
At December 31, 2008, the Health Care Trust Fund had an unfunded actuarial accrued 
liability of $1.11 billion, a funded ratio of 18.7%, and a 39-year amortization period.

 
 (w)  Application of Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

In May 2009, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 165, 
“Subsequent Events” (SFAS No. 165). Effective July 1, 2009, SFAS No. 165 was  
superseded and replaced by certain provisions of ASC Topic 855, “Subsequent Events” 
(ASC Topic 855). These provisions of ASC Topic 855 require companies to establish 
principles and requirements for subsequent events. Specifically, these provisions of 
ASC Topic 855 require the disclosure of the period after the balance sheet date through 
which management has evaluated events and transactions that may occur for potential 
recognition or disclosure in a company’s financial statements. In addition, these provisions 
of ASC Topic 855 provide the circumstances under which the disclosures are required 
of an entity regarding events and circumstances that have occurred after the balance 
sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are available to be issued. 
These provisions of ASC Topic 855 are effective for interim or annual financial periods 
ending after June 15, 2009. The Company adopted these provisions of ASC Topic 855 
for its year ended December 31, 2009, with no effect on the Company’s financial position 
or results of operations.

 2. Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses
Unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses (both allocated and unallocated) represent 
management’s best estimate of the ultimate medical and indemnity gross cost of all losses 
and loss adjustment expenses that are incurred but unpaid at year-end. Such estimates  
are based on individual case estimates for reported claims and actuarial estimates  
for losses that have been incurred but not reported. Any change in probable ultimate  
liabilities is reflected in losses and loss adjustment expenses within the statement of  
revenue, expenses, and changes in policyholders’ surplus (net assets) in the period  
such determination is made.

The estimated ultimate cost of losses is based on historical patterns and the expected  
impact of current socioeconomic trends. The ultimate settlement of claims will not be known 
in many cases for years after the time a policy expires. Court decisions and federal and 
state legislation between the time a policy is written and associated claims are ultimately 
settled, among other factors, may dramatically impact the ultimate cost. Due to these  
factors, among others, the process to estimate loss and loss adjustment expense reserves 
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at a point in time cannot provide an exact forecast of future payments. Rather, it produces 
a best estimate of liability as of a certain date. Management believes the reserves currently 
estimated to be adequate. While the ultimate liability may differ from the current estimate, 
management does not believe the difference will have a material effect, either adverse or 
favorable, on Pinnacol’s financial position or results of operations.

Discounting of Liabilities for Unpaid Losses — Pinnacol discounts its liabilities for unpaid 
losses for certain long-term scheduled payments. Workers’ compensation unpaid losses 
have been discounted on a tabular basis using a discount rate of 3.5% in 2009 and 2008.  
A tabular discount is calculated with reference to actuarial tables. These tables incorporate 
an interest rate and, in addition, factor in contingencies such as mortality, remarriage, and 
inflation rates. The amount of the tabular discount for unpaid losses as of December 31, 2009 
and 2008, respectively, is approximately $151,841,000 and $148,184,000. 

The amount of discount for case reserves at December 31, 2009, is distributed as follows 
over the years in which the losses were incurred (in thousands):

Unpaid Losses and Loss Adjustment Expenses — At December 31, 2009, Pinnacol  
accrued approximately $1,149,138,000 for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses. 
A tabular discount of approximately $151,841,000 (computed at 3.5%) was applied in the 
actuarial calculation of the liability for unpaid losses. A reserve credit of approximately 
$13,702,000 was recorded for high deductibles on unpaid claims at December 31, 2009.

At December 31, 2008, Pinnacol accrued approximately $1,223,160,000 for unpaid  
losses and loss adjustment expenses. A tabular discount of approximately $148,184,000 
(computed at 3.5%) was applied in the actuarial calculation of the liability for unpaid losses. 
A reserve credit of approximately $16,009,000 was recorded for high deductibles on unpaid 
claims at December 31, 2008.

Audited Financials, Cont.

LOSS YEAR
AMOUNT OF  

DISCOUNT

2009   $6,092  

2008   18,020  

2007   14,175  

2006   17,304  

2005   11,639  

2004   8,173  

2003   9,066  

2002   9,630  

2001   8,206  

2000   3,376  

Prior   46,160  

TOTAL   $151,841  
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Activity in the liability for unpaid losses and loss adjustment expenses for the years  
ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, is summarized as follows (in thousands):

As a result of changes in estimates of insured events in prior years, the provision for unpaid 
losses and allocated loss adjustment expenses decreased by approximately $100,303,000 
and $159,005,000 in 2009 and 2008, respectively, which is net of accretion of discount 
of $3,657,000 and $4,851,000, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2009, 
$249,030,000 had been paid for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense attributable 
to insured events of prior years. Reserves for unpaid loss and loss adjustment expense 
remaining for prior years are now $873,827,000 as a result of re-estimation of unpaid losses 
and loss adjustment expenses. This decrease is generally the result of ongoing analysis of 
recent loss development trends and better-than-expected development. Pinnacol’s claims, 
for all accident years, continue the trend of favorable development that has been evident for 
a number of calendar years. When the actual selected ultimate cost of an accident year’s 
claims is less than the original estimate, favorable development is recorded. This favorable 
development resulted from aggressive claim closure, a reduction of ultimate claim frequency 
in Colorado, and a reduction of catastrophic losses. Pinnacol management continually  
evaluates the estimate ultimate cost of all accident years and on a calendar-year basis  
adjusts to the best estimate available, favorable or unfavorable, in the current period.

UNPAID LOSSES AND LOSS  
ADJUSTMENT ExPENSES

2009 2008

BALANCE — JANUARY 1   $1,223,160    $1,253,864  

  Additional amounts incurred related to:     

    Current year   390,369    499,922  

    Prior years   (100,303)   (159,005) 

           TOTAL INCURRED   290,066    340,917  

  Reductions relating to payments for:       

    Current year   115,058    168,403  

    Prior years   249,030    203,218  

           TOTAL PAID   364,088    371,621  

BALANCE — DECEMBER 31   $1,149,138    $1,223,160  
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 3. Investments
The fair value of Pinnacol’s fixed maturities is based on quoted market prices for those or 
similar investments. The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturities as 
of December 31, 2009 and 2008, are as follows (in thousands):

2009
AMORTIZED 

COST
UNREALIZED 

GAINS
 UNREALIZED 

LOSSES
FAIR  

VALUE

U.S. GOvERNMENT OBLIGATIONS:

  Non-loan-backed bonds   $265,854    $14,120    $(4,270)   $275,704  

  Loan-backed bonds   29,440    1,125    -         30,565  

SPECIAL REvENUE:

  Non-loan-backed bonds   4,987    372    -         5,359  

  Loan-backed bonds   394,885    17,599    (52)   412,432  

INDUSTRIAL AND MISCELLANEOUS:

  Non-loan-backed bonds   920,806    62,821    (904)   982,723  

  Loan-backed bonds   -         -         -         -       

  $1,615,972    $96,037    $(5,226)   $1,706,783  

2008
AMORTIZED 

COST
UNREALIZED 

GAINS
 UNREALIZED 

LOSSES
FAIR  

VALUE

U.S. GOvERNMENT OBLIGATIONS:

  Non-loan-backed bonds   $263,069    $43,249    -         $306,318  

  Loan-backed bonds   479,260    10,541    -         489,801  

SPECIAL REvENUE:

  Non-loan-backed bonds   -         -         -         -       

  Loan-backed bonds   4,985    439    -         5,424  

INDUSTRIAL AND MISCELLANEOUS:

  Non-loan-backed bonds   946,848    28,363    (32,141)   943,070  

  Loan-backed bonds   -         -         -         -       

  $1,694,162    $82,592    $(32,141)   $1,744,613  
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The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturities at December 31, 2009,  
by contractual maturity, are shown in the following table. Contractual maturities may differ  
from actual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations  
with or without call or prepayment penalties. Investments such as mortgage-backed securities 
have been allocated based on the original maturity date at issuance (in thousands).

Proceeds from sales of investments in fixed maturities during 2009 and 2008 were  
approximately $296,143,000 and $340,802,000, respectively. Gross gains of approximately 
$10,384,000 and $14,892,000 and gross losses of approximately $4,765,000 and $85,000 
were realized on those sales in 2009 and 2008, respectively.

AMORTIZED 
COST

FAIR  
VALUE

Due in one year or less   $71,275    $72,417  

Due after one year through five years   413,498    443,792  

Due after five years through ten years   577,579    612,830  

Due after ten years   553,620    577,744  

  $1,615,972    $1,706,783  

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk — Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer  
of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is  
measured by the assignment of a rating by an organization such as Standard & Poor’s 
Corp. (S&P). Pinnacol’s investment policy states that all long-term fixed income securities 
must be rated BBB or higher by S&P at the time of purchase. Presented below is the actual 
rating by investment type (excluding non-loan-backed investments in U.S. government 
obligations) for investments in fixed maturities as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively (in thousands).

2009 S&P RATING
CORPORATE

BONDS

MORTGAGE-
BACKED 

SECURITIES

ASSET-
BACKED 

SECURITIES TOTAL

AAA   $22,311    $442,998  $          -      $465,309  

AA+   50,439                50,439  

AA   67,497                67,497  

AA-   89,983                89,983  

A+   99,850                99,850  

A   347,410                347,410  

A-   76,763                76,763  

bbb+   75,048                75,048  

bbb   84,822                84,822  

bbb-   53,965                53,965  

bb+   3,392                3,392  

Nonrated   16,601                16,601  

TOTAL   $988,081    $442,998  $          -      $1,431,079  
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2008 S&P RATING
CORPORATE

BONDS

MORTGAGE-
BACKED 

SECURITIES

ASSET-
BACKED 

SECURITIES TOTAL

AAA   $73,263    $489,801  $          -      $563,064  

AA+   -                     -       

AA   78,042                78,042  

AA-   54,157                54,157  

A+   123,577                123,577  

A   *356,704                356,704  

A-   93,427                93,427  

bbb+   79,028                79,028  

bbb   63,188                63,188  

bbb-   6,581                6,581  

bb+   2,813    2,813  

CCC+   23,739                23,739  

TOTAL   $954,519    $489,801  $         -      $1,444,320  

* Includes $6,025 of short-term corporate bonds.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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* Includes $11,876 of short-term bonds.
** Includes $6,025 of short-term bonds.
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Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes  
in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment. Generally,  
the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to  
changes in market interest rates. As stated in Pinnacol’s investment policy, one of the  
ways that Pinnacol manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination 
of short- and long-term investments and by timing cash flows from maturities so that a  
portion of the portfolio is maturing, or coming close to maturity, evenly over time as necessary 
to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations and claim obligations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of Pinnacol’s investments to market interest 
rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of Pinnacol’s 
investments in fixed maturities by remaining time until the maturity date for 2009 and 2008.  
Investments such as mortgage-backed securities have been allocated based on the  
original maturity date at issuance. Contractual maturities may differ from actual maturities 
because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or 
prepayment penalties.

REMAINING MATURITY 2009  (IN THOUSANDS) 

12 MONTHS 
OR LESS

13-24 
MONTHS

25-60 
MONTHS

MORE THAN 
60 MONTHS TOTAL

U.S. GOvERNMENT OBLIGATIONS   27,267    $19,310    $8,463    $220,663    $275,703  

SPECIAL REvENUE   -         -         -         5,359    5,359  

INDUSTRIAL AND MISC.   45,150    61,996    354,022    521,555    982,723  

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES   -         -         -         442,998    442,998  

Total   $72,417    $81,306    $362,485    $1,190,575    $1,706,783  

REMAINING MATURITY 2008  (IN THOUSANDS) 

12 MONTHS 
OR LESS

13-24 
MONTHS

25-60 
MONTHS

MORE THAN 
60 MONTHS TOTAL

U.S. GOvERNMENT OBLIGATIONS * $  11,876   $28,152    $28,622    $249,544    $318,194  

SPECIAL REvENUE   -                   -             -   5,424    5,424  

INDUSTRIAL AND MISC.   **  82,422   50,370    283,888    532,415    949,095  

MORTGAGE-BACKED SECURITIES   11    -         -         489,790    489,801  

TOTAL   $94,309    $78,522    $312,510    $1,277,173    $1,762,514  
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TOTAL

Investments in equity securities are reported at fair value based on quoted market prices.  
Related unrealized gains and losses are reported directly in nonoperating income.  
The gross unrealized gains and losses on equity securities, cost, and fair value of those 
investments are summarized as follows (in thousands):

The following table provides the length of impairment for those investments with an  
unrealized loss as of December 31, 2009 (in thousands):

 

As of December 31, 2009, unrealized losses consisted of the following number of securities:

COMMON STOCKS AND  
MUTUAL FUNDS COST

GROSS  
UNREALIZED 

GAINS

GROSS  
UNREALIZED 

LOSSES FAIR VALUE

   December 31, 2009   $273,750    $56,031    $(61,545)   $268,236  

   December 31, 2008   $254,973    $2,361    $(68,272)   $189,062  

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

DESCRIPTION  
OF SECURITIES

FAIR  
VALUE

UNREALIZED 
LOSSES

FAIR  
VALUE

UNREALIZED 
LOSSES

FAIR  
VALUE

UNREALIZED 
LOSSES

FIxED INCOME:

Industrial and miscellaneous  $7,923  $(51)  $11,077  $(853)  $19,000  $(904)

Government obligations  53,894  (4,270)  -    -    53,894  (4,270)

Mortgage-backed securities  12,156  (52)  -    -    12,156  (52)

TOTAL FIxED INCOME  73,973  (4,373)  11,077  (853)  85,050  (5,226)

EQUITIES:

Common stock  7,589  (384)  4,026  (509)  11,615  (893)

Mutual funds  990  (7)  -    -    990  (7)

TOTAL EQUITIES  8,579  (391)  4,026  (509)  12,605  (900)

TOTAL  $82,552  $(4,764)  $15,103  $(1,362)  $97,655  $(6,126)

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

FIxED INCOME:  4  2  6 

EQUITIES:  34  7  41 

TOTAL  38  9  47 
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The following table provides the length of impairment for those investments with an  
unrealized loss as of December 31, 2008 (in thousands):

As of December 31, 2008, unrealized losses consisted of the following number of securities:

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

DESCRIPTION  
OF SECURITIES

FAIR  
VALUE

UNREALIZED 
LOSSES

FAIR  
VALUE

UNREALIZED 
LOSSES

FAIR  
VALUE

UNREALIZED 
LOSSES

FIxED INCOME:

Industrial and miscellaneous  $255,588  $(17,702)  $70,345  $(11,802)  $325,933  $(29,504)

Government obligations  35,213  (719)  8,013  (405)  43,226  (1,124)

Mortgage-backed securities  6,249  (299)  -    -    6,249  (299)

TOTAL FIxED INCOME  297,050  (18,720)  78,358  (12,207)  375,408  (30,927)

EQUITIES:

Common stock  31,220  (12,743)  5,798  (4,340)  37,018  (17,083)

Mutual funds  111,979  (45,503)  8,069  (5,685)  120,048  (51,188)

TOTAL EQUITIES  143,199  (58,246)  13,867  (10,025)  157,066  (68,271)

TOTAL  $440,249  $(76,966)  $92,225  $(22,232)  $532,474  $(99,198)

LESS THAN 12 MONTHS 12 MONTHS OR GREATER TOTAL

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

FIxED INCOME:  40  13  53 

EQUITIES:  62  24  86 

TOTAL  102  37  139 

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Fair value Measurements — The Company’s assets and liabilities recorded at fair value 
have been categorized based upon a fair value hierarchy. The levels of the fair value hierarchy 
are described below.   

•  Level 1 inputs utilize observable, quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical 
assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to access. Financial assets and  
liabilities utilizing Level 1 inputs include actively exchange-traded equity securities.

•  Level 2 inputs utilize other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable 
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.  Level 2 inputs include quoted prices 
for similar assets and liabilities in active markets and inputs other than quoted prices 
that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that 
are observable at commonly quoted intervals.  

•  Level 3 inputs are unobservable and include situations where there is little, if any,  
market activity for the asset or liability.  

In certain cases, the inputs used to measure fair value may fall into different levels of the 
fair value hierarchy.  In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair 
value measurement in its entirety falls has been determined based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.  The Company’s assessment 
of the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement in its entirety requires 
judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

The following table presents information about the Company’s financial assets measured  
at fair value on a recurring basis for either accounting or disclosure purposes as of  
December 31, 2009, and indicates the fair value hierarchy of the valuation techniques  
utilized by the Company to determine such fair value (in thousands):

FAIR vALUE MEASUREMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2009

QUOTED PRICES  
IN ACTIVE  

MARKETS FOR 
IDENTICAL ASSETS

(LEVEL 1)

SIGNIFICANT 
OTHER  

OBSERVABLE 
INPUTS

(LEVEL 2)

SIGNIFICANT  
UNOBSERVABLE 

INPUTS
(LEVEL 3) TOTAL

ASSETS

Fixed maturities   $            -         $1,689,632    $17,151    $1,706,783  

Equity securities   268,236    -         -         268,236  

TOTAL ASSETS   $268,236    $1,689,632    $17,151    $1,975,019  

Audited Financials, Cont.



55

Pinnacol Assurance 2009 Annual Report, © 2010

55

The following table presents additional information about fixed maturity assets measured  
at fair value on a recurring basis and for which the Company has utilized Level 3 inputs  
to determine fair value (in thousands):

The Company has no assets or liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis  
as of December 31, 2009.

RECURRING LEVEL 3 FINANCIAL          
FIxED MATURITy ASSETS 

yEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2009

FIxED MATURITIES

BALANCE — JANUARY 1, 2009   $18,073  

Realized and unrealized gains and losses:

  Gains (losses) included in income 647

Purchases, issuances and settlements   (1,569) 

Transfers in (out) of Level 3 –

BALANCE — DECEMBER 31, 2009   $17,151  

Total gains (losses) for the period included in income   
attributable to the change in unrealized gains and 
losses relating to assets held at December 31, 2009   $647  

 

Audited Financials, Cont.
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Investment Income — Major categories of investment income for the years ended  
December 31, 2009 and 2008, are summarized as follows (in thousands):

The company did not have any significant concentrations by industry or by issuer as of 
December 31, 2009 or 2008.

 4. Uninsured Plans and Uninsured Portion of Partially Insured Plans
Pinnacol offers Administrative Services Contract Plans whereby Pinnacol acts as a third-party 
administrator for all workers’ compensation claims under these contracts. All loss and loss 
adjustment expenses related to claims under these contracts are reimbursed to Pinnacol. 
Pinnacol does not record premium revenue nor loss and loss adjustment expenses on 
these plans but does show the related receivables for these costs. Reimbursements billed 
under these contracts were approximately $34,294,000 and $37,171,000 in 2009 and 2008, 
respectively. Included in these contracts are transactions with the State.

2009 2008

INvESTMENT INCOME:

  Corporate and miscellaneous bonds   $76,735    $73,129  

  U.S. government obligations   13,180    18,858  

  Cash and other investments   367    2,068  

  Equity securities   4,569    4,102  

  Repurchase/reverse repurchase   -         583  

  Investment expenses   (1,971)   (2,068) 

NET INvESTMENT INCOME EARNED   92,880    96,672  

NET REALIzED GAINS   (1,848)   11,744  

UNREALIzED (LOSSES) GAINS   100,652    (82,868) 

NET INvESTMENT INCOME   $191,684    $25,548  
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 5. Reinsurance
Ceded Reinsurance — Pinnacol purchases excess of loss reinsurance with two layers.  
The reinsurance coverage for individual workers’ compensation accidents was as follows:

a. Layer 1 — Limit of $20,000,000 in excess of retention of $20,000,000 per occurrence.

b. Layer 2 — Limit of $40,000,000 in excess of retention of $40,000,000 per occurrence.

This coverage was in effect at December 31, 2009 and 2008. Management is not aware 
of any loss great enough to attach to these layers during any of the aforementioned policy 
periods.

Should the reinsurers be unable to meet their obligations under the reinsurance contracts, 
Pinnacol would remain liable for amounts ceded to its reinsurers. Reinsurance contracts 
do not relieve Pinnacol of its obligations, and a failure of the reinsurer to honor its obligations 
could result in losses to Pinnacol. Pinnacol evaluates and monitors the financial condition  
of its reinsurers to minimize its exposure to loss from reinsurer insolvency. Management  
of Pinnacol believes its reinsurers are financially sound and will continue to meet their  
contractual obligations.

Pinnacol’s reinsurers had the following AM Best ratings at December 31, 2009:

Audited Financials, Cont.

REINSURER AM  BEST RATING

AXIS Specialty Limited A

Endurance Specialty Insurance Ltd. A

Flagstone Reassurance Suisse SA A-

Lloyd’s Syndicate - FDY #0435 NR

Lloyd’s Syndicate - ATR #0570 AS

Lloyd’s Syndicate - CSL #1084 AS

Lloyd’s Syndicate - BGT #1301 NR

Lloyd’s Syndicate - DRE #1400 NR-5

Lloyd’s Syndicate - LIB #4472 NR

Validus Reinsurance Ltd. A-
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Assumed Reinsurance   — Effective March 1, 2004, Pinnacol executed a reinsurance  
contract with Argonaut Insurance Co. (a California corporation) for Other States  
Coverage that is in effect as of December 31, 2009. The contract is designed as a 100% 
quota share arrangement with Pinnacol acting as the assuming company. This contract  
allows Pinnacol to provide insurance coverage under the workers’ compensation provisions 
of other states for the employees of Colorado companies who work outside of Colorado. 
Premium revenue is recognized pro rata over the period the policy is effective. 

Pinnacol held unearned premium reserves related to assumed business of $1,546,000 and 
$2,149,000 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. Pinnacol had 
loss and loss adjustment expense reserves related to assumed business of $28,834,000 
and $30,766,000 for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

The following reinsurance activity has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial 
statements (in thousands):

2009 2008

Direct premiums written   $353,824    $484,459  

Premiums ceded   (1,041)   (1,416) 

Premiums assumed   17,247    28,559  

NET PREMIUMS WRITTEN   $370,030    $511,602  

Direct premiums earned   $381,693    $494,418  

Premiums ceded   (1,041)   (1,416) 

Premiums assumed   17,850    28,080  

NET PREMIUMS EARNED   $398,502    $521,082  

Direct losses incurred   $248,298    $253,626  

Losses ceded             -   675  

Losses assumed   7,225    19,775  

NET LOSSES INCURRED   $255,523    $274,076  

Direct loss adjustment expenses incurred   $31,312    $66,204  

Loss adjustment expenses ceded             -             -

Loss adjustment expenses assumed   3,231    637  

NET LOSS ADJUSTMENT ExPENSES INCURRED   $34,543    $66,841  

Audited Financials, Cont.
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 6. Policyholders’ Surplus (Net Assets)
Pinnacol issued approximately $122,600,000 and $54,362,000 in general policyholder  
dividends to its policyholders in good standing in 2009 and 2008, respectively. This is  
included in dividends to policyholders in the statement of revenue, expenses, and  
changes in policyholders’ surplus (net assets) and reduces net income for the year  
ending December 31, 2009. 

The Division of Insurance monitors a company’s “risk-based capital” requirement in  
assessing the financial strength of an insurance company. Pinnacol’s level of statutory-basis 
policyholders’ surplus exceeds the “company action level” of risk-based capital, which is 
approximately $115,860,000 for 2009.  Pinnacol had statutory basis policyholders’ surplus 
of approximately $732,527,000 and $698,001,000 as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, 
respectively.

 7. Compensated Absences for Paid Time Off
Pinnacol employees may accrue paid time off based on their length of service, subject 
to certain limitations on the amount which will be paid upon termination. Paid time off is 
recorded as an expense and a liability at the time the paid time off is earned. The estimated 
liability for cumulative accrued paid time off of approximately $1,574,000 and $1,684,000 at 
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, is included in other liabilities in the accompanying 
financial statements.

 8. Commitments and Contingencies
Pinnacol is party to various claims and lawsuits that arise in the normal course of its business. 
Management of Pinnacol believes that liabilities that may arise due to the resolution of these 
matters, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on policyholders’ surplus or the results 
of operations and/or liquidity of Pinnacol.

At December 31, 2009 and 2008, Pinnacol had a letter of credit for the benefit of Argonaut 
Insurance Co. under the assumptive reinsurance agreement for approximately $46,169,000 
and $50,656,000, respectively. This reinsurance agreement allows the company to draw upon 
the letter of credit, which is 100% collateralized, at any time to secure any of Pinnacol’s  
obligations under the agreement. Included in fixed maturities are amounts held as collateral 
for the letter of credit of approximately $77,433,000 and $77,414,000, compared with a 
requirement of $46,169,000 and $50,656,000, as of December 31, 2009 and 2008,  
respectively.

Pinnacol is contingently liable for approximately $57,153,000 of claims closed by the  
purchases of annuities from life insurers for structured settlements. No provision has  
been made for this contingency, as management believes that any payments related to  
this contingency are remote.

Audited Financials, Cont.
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 9. Capital Assets
Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, was as follows  
(in thousands):

BALANCE —  
JAN. 1, 2009

ACQUISITIONS
(DISPOSITIONS) DEPRECIATION

BALANCE —  
DEC. 31, 2009

LAND, BUILDING, AND IMPROvEMENTS:

  Historical cost   $27,633    $289    $            -         $27,922  

  Accumulated depreciation   (5,290)     -     (1,043)   (6,333) 

           TOTAL   22,343    289    (1,043)   21,589  

FURNITURE, FIxTURES, AND ART:

  Historical cost   8,586    (928)    -         7,658  

  Accumulated depreciation   (5,785)   1,299    (1,011)   (5,497) 

           TOTAL   2,801    371    (1,011)   2,161  

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT:

  Historical cost   6,092    1,449           -   7,541  

  Accumulated depreciation   (5,272)   1,696    (1,243)   (4,819) 

           TOTAL   820    3,145    (1,243)   2,722  

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS — NET   $25,964    $3,805    $(3,297)   $26,472  

BALANCE —  
JAN. 1, 2008

ACQUISITIONS
(DISPOSITIONS) DEPRECIATION

BALANCE —  
DEC. 31, 2008

LAND, BUILDING, AND IMPROvEMENTS:

  Historical cost   $25,961    $1,672    $            -         $27,633  

  Accumulated depreciation   (4,354)          -   (936)   (5,290) 

           TOTAL   21,607    1,672    (936)   22,343  

FURNITURE, FIxTURES, AND ART:

  Historical cost   7,974    612           -   8,586  

  Accumulated depreciation   (4,846)          -   (939)   (5,785) 

           TOTAL   3,128    612    (939)   2,801  

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT:

  Historical cost   5,371    721           -   6,092  

  Accumulated depreciation   (4,260)          -   (1,012)   (5,272) 

           TOTAL   1,111    721    (1,012)   820  

TOTAL CAPITAL ASSETS — NET   $25,846    $3,005    $(2,887)   $25,964  
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 10. Subsequent Events
General Dividend Declared — The board of directors held a meeting on April 7, 2010,  
in which it declared a general dividend of approximately $47,500,000 to its policyholders 
with policies in good standing. This general dividend was paid in May 2010.The board of 
directors, at its discretion, determines the amount of policyholder dividends to be declared 
based on Pinnacol’s overall experience and financial condition. 

Performance Audit — During the 2009 Colorado legislative session, SB 09-281 was  
approved and signed by the governor. An amendment to CRS 8-45-121, SB 09-281  
included a performance audit to be conducted and managed by the State Auditor’s  
Office. Extracted from CRS 8-45-121 as enacted:

An annual financial audit and, in 2009, a performance audit of Pinnacol Assurance shall 
be made as soon as practicable by the state auditor, such audits to include, but not be 
limited to, executive compensation, premium rate structure, known loss reserves, incurred 
but not reported losses, and injured workers’ claims experience. In conducting such audits, 
the state auditor may employ a firm of auditors and actuaries, or both, with the necessary 
specialized knowledge and experience. The cost of such annual audit shall be paid from 
the operating funds of Pinnacol Assurance. The state auditor shall report his or her findings 
from such audits, along with any comments and recommendations, to the governor, the 
general assembly, the executive director of the department of labor and employment, and 
the commissioner of insurance. The state auditor shall have continuing authority to conduct 
performance audits of Pinnacol Assurance as the state auditor deems appropriate. The cost 
of performance audits shall be paid from the operating funds of Pinnacol Assurance.

The 2009 Performance Audit commenced during the third quarter of 2009 and as of the 
second quarter of 2010 is not yet complete. The audit scope included policy periods going 
back to 2005. 

While the draft results of the Performance Audit have been made available to management, 
they are confidential and subject to finalization. We expect the report to be released to the 
public during June 2010. While the results are not expected to impact policyholders’  
surplus as of December 31, 2009, there is an enhanced risk that the Performance Audit  
report could carry significant reputational, regulatory and political risk, such that the operations 
and surplus of Pinnacol could be significantly negatively impacted in future periods.

Triannual Fiscal Examination — The Division of Insurance has begun its triannual  
financial examination of Pinnacol. This examination covers the fiscal years ended 2007, 
2008 and 2009 and will not be complete prior to the issuance of these financial statements. 
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PERA Liability —  During March 2010 Pinnacol was informed that the obligation  
of Pinnacol for the unfunded portion of the PERA defined benefit plan that all Pinnacol  
employees — past, present and future — participate in is significantly underfunded as  
to past service cost. The estimated Pinnacol portion of this underfunding is in excess  
of $75 million. In response to PERA’s unfunded liability, Colorado enacted legislation  
during the recently adjourned session, SB 10-01, that provides for additional funding  
in future periods by increasing the current employer obligation of 13.85% of covered  
payroll to as much as 20.15% of covered payroll by 2017. As the increases are based  
upon various actuarial and investment assumptions, there can be no assurance  
that the 20.15% will be sufficient to fund the entire obligation. 

These events have been evaluated through May 21, 2010, the date these financial  
statements were issued.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on  
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of the Financial 
Statements in Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
To the Members of the Legislative Audit Committee and Pinnacol Assurance  
Board of Directors:

We have audited the financial statements of Pinnacol Assurance (Pinnacol) as of and for  
the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008, and have issued our report thereon dated 
May 21, 2010. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the 
United States of America.  

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audits, we considered Pinnacol’s internal control over  
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of  
expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing  
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control over financial reporting.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal  
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control over financial reporting exists when the design or operation 
of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely  
affects the entity’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data  
reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is 
more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity’s financial statement that is 
more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.  

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, 
that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial 
statements will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose  
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all  
deficiencies in internal control that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses.  
We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we  
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Pinnacol’s financial statements 
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain  
provisions of laws, regulations, and contracts, noncompliance with which could have  
a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an  
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results  
of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required  
to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

This report is intended solely for the information and the use of the members of the Legislative 
Audit Committee, the board of directors and management of Pinnacol, and state insurance 
departments to whose jurisdiction Pinnacol is subject, and is not intended to be and should 
not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

May 21, 2010
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